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Administrative Office of the Courts (AOC)

SUBJECT:
Amendment No. 3 – to RFP 0711 – Answers to Bidders’ Questions Numbers 31- 60.
The following Answers to Bidders' Questions Numbers 31 through 60 are issued as Amendment No. 3 to the Request for Proposals 07-11.
Note:  These Administrative Office of the Courts (AOC) Answers to Bidders’ Questions may only explain or clarify some aspect that is already addressed in the RFP.  But some of the answers may also supplement or change what was previously stated in the RFP, or in an appendices.  Therefore it is important that bidders read all questions and answers.
Existing reporting / BI system

31. It is mentioned on Page 6 of the RFP – “The majority of end users access the data using Hyperion 8, although some courts continue to run Brio 6.”  Does AOC have any plans for upgrading to Hyperion System 9 by September 2007?

AOC Answer:  Any potential upgrade to Hyperion 9 will be a result of the solution proposed by the apparently successful vendor.
32. What are the pain areas for existing reporting system?
AOC Answer:

· Lack of consistency among reporting tools; currently NATURAL, COBOL, Hyperion, and ColdFusion are used to create reports;

· Lack of standard definitions; for example, “case resolution” can mean several different things depending on the context;

· Lack of processes for quality assurance, publishing, modifying reports; 
· Non-intuitive end user tools.

33. Can AOC give a brief overview including the architecture of the 2 existing data warehouses, the Public Data Warehouse, and the existing ODS?

AOC Answer:  The ODS is a replication of the transactional database, a normalized relational database.  The Public Data Warehouse is a slightly denormalized subset of the ODS.  The EDWJIS is a dimensional database sourced from the ODS.  Also, see the diagram provided as item 7 on the procurement page (http://www.courts.wa.gov/procuredocs/96/07-Diagram.doc).
34. What is the target date for CMS to go live?  Will the legacy system on DB2 remain as one of the data sources after the conversion to CMS is complete?
AOC Answer:  Pilot implementation is currently scheduled for sometime between January and May of 2008.  The legacy system on DB2 will remain a data source for the duration of the conversion process.  Once all courts have converted, the DB2 system will no longer be a source.  That conversion process is expected to take approximately three (3) years.

35. In the professional services mentioned on page 7, it is stated that ‘provide a data warehouse architecture for the AOC’ – is it correct to assume that the ODS is also included as a part of the data warehouse architecture?
AOC Answer:  That is a correct assumption.
36. Is there any requirement of Metadata Management across the sources, ODS, Data warehouses, and presentation layer?

AOC Answer:  Metadata management has not been called out as a specific requirement, but AOC encourages vendors to submit their ideas for MDM as a part of their proposal.
Source/Target Systems

37. What subject areas do the source systems comprise of?  (Internal)
AOC Answer:  The broad area would be court case and participant data.
Court case information:  basic case information (filing date, case status, resolution and disposition dates, etc.); charge (criminal) and cause (civil) data; accounting data; proceeding (hearings) information; docketing (actions and events); judgment and sentencing information; appellate opinions; juvenile diversions (i.e., juvenile cases not referred for prosecution within the adult court); juvenile truancy and dependency data; warrants; protections order data; and other data.
Participant information:  for all participant types (litigants, attorneys, judges, court reporters, guardians, case workers, parents, law enforcement officers, payors/payees, etc.); information may include names, addresses (mailing, residence, e-mail, phone); personal information (date of birth, date of death, driver’s license, height, weight, etc.); individual’s connection to case(s); legal financial obligations; and other information.
38. Any new subject areas being planned to be added?  If yes, is there any impact on existing source systems?  (Internal)
AOC Answer:  No additional subject areas are planned at this time.
39. What is the database for CMS?  If not database, does it produce flat files?
AOC Answer:  The database for the new CMS has not yet been determined.  The current systems run on DB2 databases.
40. What is the complexity of each source/target (ODS and DW) system - number of tables and fields?

AOC Answer:  The ODS is a simple replication of the DB2 source tables, with the addition of a timestamp and transaction code, and contains 289 tables, incorporating 3,171 fields.  The DW contains 107 dimension tables and 61 fact tables.
ETL

41. Is there any mechanism to identify the incremental data for each of the source systems?

AOC Answer:  Inserts and updates are identified in the ODS with a transaction timestamp.  Deletes are identified using a comparison of source to target data.
42. What version of Informatica is currently being used in the existing application?  If Informatica 7, then is there any plan to upgrade this to Informatica 8?
AOC Answer:  AOC currently uses Informatica PowerCenter 7 (standard edition).  Any potential upgrade will be a result of the solution proposed by the apparently successful vendor.
43. Do you use any Data Quality Software to address DQ issues at the AOC?

AOC Answer:  No data quality software currently exists at the AOC.  Vendors are encouraged to include this as part of their solution.
Data Modeling

44. If you have any existing data model of the currently running Data Warehouses, can it be shared?

AOC Answer:  Data models will be made available at the start of this project.
Reporting

45. Do you have any categorization of reports such as of ad-hoc, canned, analytical, statistical, dashboard etc?  If so, please provide the denominations along with their complexity in terms of simple, medium, and complex.  Also provide the frequency of those reports in terms of daily, weekly, monthly, yearly etc.
AOC Answer:

	Category
	Complexity
	Frequency
	Count

	Statistical and analytical
	Simple
	Monthly
	1

	
	Simple
	Annually
	2

	
	Simple
	On demand
	309

	
	Medium
	On demand
	117

	
	Complex
	On demand
	2

	Statistical and analytical 
	Total
	Total
	431

	Dashboard
	Complex
	On demand
	4

	Dashboard 
	Total
	Total
	4

	Ad-hoc 
	Simple
	On demand
	1

	
	Medium
	On demand
	16

	
	Complex
	On demand
	1

	Ad-hoc
	Total
	Total
	18

	Canned
	Simple
	Weekly
	1

	
	Simple
	Monthly
	3

	
	Simple
	Annually
	1

	
	Simple
	On demand
	676

	
	Complex
	On demand
	8

	Canned
	Total
	Total
	689


46. On Page 16 – security requirements it is mentioned that ‘the application must integrate with courts’ security systems for authentication and authorization’ – please provide details on the existing security system (if any portal integration required).
AOC Answer:  Product should use standard LDAP roles for establishing, authenticating and applying permissions for access.
47. Please provide brief overview about the Judicial Information System (JIS) as per integration with proposed EDW.

AOC Answer:  The Judicial Information System (JIS) consists of several applications, including the Appellate Court Records and Data System (ACORDS), the Superior Court Management Information System (SCOMIS), the Judicial Accounting Subsystem (JASS), the District and Municipal Court Information System (JIS, formerly DISCIS), and the Juvenile and Corrections System (JCS).  All these systems write their transactions to the DB2 databases which are the source for the ODS and, subsequently, the EDW.
48. Are there any existing sample reports that can be made available?
AOC Answer:  Please refer to Attachment A at the end of this document.
49. What are the areas in which issues are being faced by the existing users?
AOC Answer:

· Lack of consistency among reporting tools; currently NATURAL, COBOL, Hyperion, and ColdFusion are used to create reports;

· Lack of standard definitions; for example, “case resolution” can mean several different things depending on the context;

· Lack of processes for quality assurance, publishing, modifying reports; 

· Non-intuitive end user tools.

50. In section 3 – Software solution, page 15, it is mentioned that ‘the ability to allow up to 1000 concurrent users’ – please provide the expected number of administrators, designers, power users, etc.
AOC Answer:  Estimates are for 2 administrators, 10 designers, 80 power users, 120 casual users.  The remaining users will be public access users accessing the warehouse using canned queries available through the AOC Web site.
51. Will the deployment and training span multiple geographies?  If so, please specify the number of sites.  Also mention how many candidates have to be trained (approximate figure).

AOC Answer:  Deployment will occur in a single location.
ETL software training:  Five ETL developers and two administrators will require training.

Replication software training:  two administrators and two developers will be trained.

Data quality software:  two administrators will require training.  Six end users will need to be trained in how to develop data quality rules and create them in the software.

ETL, replication and data quality software training will occur in a single location.

Reporting and ad-hoc query training:  End user training may span locations across the state of Washington.  Options for statewide training include either regional training at 4 to 5 sites statewide or county training in each of the 32 judicial districts (comprising 39 individual counties).
We are estimating 200 court and 30 AOC staff will need to be trained.  Of those, 80 or so will be frequent users with a high degree of competency.  Ten of the AOC will be expert users, adept at all aspects of the end-user tool.
There will be two staff designated for administrator training.

52. Is there any need of multilingual reporting?  If yes, what different languages?

AOC Answer:  There is no multilingual reporting requirement.
Data Migration
53. It is mentioned in the RFP that ‘Combined, the repositories and the ODS have 1.2 terabytes of data’ – do we need to migrate the complete 1.2 TB data into the new EDW environment?  Is there is any other existing historical data that needs to be migrated to the new environment?
AOC Answer:  Yes.  All data must be migrated.  In addition, accounting data, which does not currently exist in the data warehouse will be migrated to the new environment.  This additional data is estimated to be not more than 1 terabyte.

54. Do you have any specific data retention policy?  If yes, please specify.

AOC Answer:  Please refer to the Washington State requirements for data retention cited below. 
CLJ retention:

http://www.secstate.wa.gov/archives/doc/DIST-MUN%20Court%20Read-only%2010_02.doc
Superior court retention:

http://www.secstate.wa.gov/archives/doc/COUNTY%20SUPR%20CT%20CLERK%202001.doc
System Integration

55. What are the system integration activities that need to be performed?
AOC Answer:  Provide a plan for integrating the data from the legacy system and the new CMS, including the ability to determine if updates are attempting to modify the same record and, if so, which is the most current transaction.  For example, during the conversion to the new CMS, a court on the old system and a court on the new system may both update person information.  If two transactions come in during a load, how will the EDW determine which is the most recent update?
General

56. What is the expected start date and end date of project?
AOC Answer:  Work is expected to begin June 11, 2007.  Vendors are requested to submit a proposed project plan including their best estimated end date, which should be on or about September 15, 2007 (see page 8 of the RFP, “Project Duration and Contract Renewal” and page 13, item 10 under “Section 1. Submittal Letter…”).
57. What is the duration of warranty support that is required?
AOC Answer:  Vendors should submit documentation on their proposed warranty support for 1) software products, 2) services, and 3) appliances.
58. Is training part of the scope?  If yes, what type of training is planned?
AOC Answer:

ETL software training:  Five ETL developers and two administrators will require training.

Replication software training: two administrators and two developers will be trained.

Data quality software: two administrators will require training.  Six end users will need to be trained in how to develop data quality rules and create them in the software.

ETL, replication and data quality software training will occur in a single location.

Reporting and ad-hoc query training:  End user training may span locations across the State of Washington.  Options for statewide training include either regional training at 4 to 5 sites statewide, or county training in each of the 32 judicial districts (comprising 39 individual counties).  

We are estimating 200 court and 30 AOC staff will need to be trained.  Of those, 80 or so will be frequent users with a high degree of competency.  Ten of the AOC will be expert users, adept at all aspects of the end-user tool.

There will be two staff designated for administrator training.

59. Are you open to onsite/offshore working model for the development and post implementation application support?
AOC Answer:  It is the vendor’s responsibility to present the best model of their solution.  The AOC is open to an onsite/offsite model if the vendor can clearly demonstrate that it is of benefit to the courts of Washington.
60. What is the Washington State Court Organizational structure that the vendor needs to be familiarized in order to execute the project?
AOC Answer:  The Washington State court system is comprised of 200 courts, ranging from the State Supreme Court to the Courts of Limited Jurisdiction (traffic infractions, misdemeanors, parking infractions, etc.).  Among other duties, the AOC provides the technology to assist the courts in carrying out their duties.
The technology oversight committee of the AOC is the Judicial Information System Committee (JISC), chaired by a justice of the Supreme Court.  Representatives of the judiciary, court clerks, county clerks, and court administrators sit on the JISC and determine the policies and direction of the AOC.
The JISC appoints steering committees to act as governing boards for programs and projects of the AOC.  This project will fall under the jurisdiction of the Data Management Steering Committee.  This group is made up of data warehouse users from within the court community, and they will review and monitor the progress and deliverables of the EDW project.

